
Page 1 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
Meeting: Tidworth Area Board 

Place: Enford Village Hall, Longstreet, Enford, SN9 6DD 

Date: Monday 17 July 2017 

Time: 7.00 pm 

 

 
Including the Parishes of Chute, Chute Forest, Collingbourne Ducis, Collingbourne, 
Kingston, Enford, Everleigh, Fittleton, Ludgershall, Netheravon, Tidcombe and Fosbury, 
and Tidworth. 

 

The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public. 
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so. 
 

   If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, 
please contact your Democratic Services Officer. 

 
Refreshments and networking opportunity from 6:30pm .  

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services 
Officer), direct line 01249 706612 or email kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115. 
 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
                      Cllr Mark Connolly, Tidworth 

                          Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, The Collingbournes and Netheravon 
                          Cllr Christopher Williams, Ludgershall and Perham Down 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

 

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 

 

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 

accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 

 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 

available on request. 

 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


Page 3 

 

Items to be considered Time 

1   Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

5 mins 

 Chairman’s Announcements: 
 

 Bobby Van Trust – Free Online safety support. 
 

 Formal Consultation on the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site 
Allocations Plan. 

 

 

2   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations 
granted by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4   Minutes (Pages 7 - 16)  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 17 May 
2017. 
 

 

5   Police Update (Pages 17 - 22) 10 mins 

 An update from Inspector Nick Mawson – Wiltshire Police. 
 

 

6   Fire & Rescue Update  10 mins 

 An update from Tom Brolan - District Commander Amesbury, 
Ludgershall & Pewsey. 
 

 

7   Local Youth Network update including grants  10 mins 

 An update from the Wellington Academy Heroes. 
 

 

8   Alzheimer's Society - Side by Side Project  10 mins 

 Dianne Jenkins - Alzheimer’s Society. 
 

 

9   Cyber Crime  10 mins 

 Lee Stripe – Wiltshire Police Cyber Crime Prevention.   



Page 4 

 

10   TCAP Thematic Group Updates  10 mins 

  Health & Wellbeing Group update including grants - Reia 
Jones 

 

 Dementia Action Alliance subgroup update – Brian Pratt 
 

 Child Poverty subgroup update – Marc Read 
 

 Neighbourhood Tasking Group – Cllr Chris Williams 
 

 Older Person & Carers Champion update – Tony Pickernell 
 

 

11   Community Engagement Manager update  10 mins 

 Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager. 
 

 First World War commemorative tree planting. 
 

 

12   Community Area Transport Group update  5 mins 

 Cllr Mark Connolly. 
 

 

13   Area Board Grant Review  5 mins 

 Tidworth Community Area Pre-Schools that have received 

funding over the past 18 months. 

 

 

14   Grant Funding (Pages 23 - 30) 15 mins 

 To determine any applications for Community Area Grants. 
 
Grant application packs for the Community Area Grants Scheme 
are available from the Community Area Manager or electronically at: 
 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboar
dscommunitygrantsscheme.htm. 
 

 

15   Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Army, NHS, 
TCAP, Lovell and other Partners (Pages 31 - 34) 

15 mins 

 To receive any updates. 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm


Page 5 

 

16   Date of Next Meeting   

 The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on Monday 18 
September at the Memorial Hall, Ludgershall. 
 

 

17   Close   

 





Chairman’s Announcements 

 

 

Subject: Formal Consultation on the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan 

Contact 
Details: 

 Sophie Davies 01225 713429 

 

Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan – Advance notice of 
consultation  
 
Wiltshire Council’s Cabinet, on 20 June, approved the draft Wiltshire Housing Site 

Allocations Plan for consultation to commence in July.   

 

The draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan, a formal Development Plan 
Document, has been prepared in accordance with the Wiltshire Core Strategy.   It 
will allocate new sites for housing and amend, where necessary, settlement 
boundaries at the Principal Settlements of Salisbury and Trowbridge, Market 
Towns, Local Service Centres and Large Villages.  
 

Although the consultation will not start until Friday 14 July 2017 (and continue for 

10 weeks) the Council are seeking to raise awareness through the Area Board 

network of the consultation period and drop in events being held as part of the 

consultation.  

 

The drop-in events will be open between 12 noon and 7pm as follows: 

 

Neeld Community & Art Centre, High Street, Chippenham SN15 3ER -Monday 17 

July 2017 

 

Guildhall, Market Place, Salisbury SP1 1JH - Wednesday 19 July 2017 

 

Town Hall, St Johns Street, Devizes SN10 1BN - Monday 24 July 2017 

 

Atrium, County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN - Wednesday 26 July 2017 

 

Officers from the Council will be available during the day to answer questions 

about the draft Plan and we would encourage people to attend to find out more 

about what the draft Plan proposes in their area. 

 

From the start of consultation on Friday 14 July, the draft Plan and the supporting 

evidence will be available during normal opening hours at the Council’s main 

offices (Monkton Park, Chippenham; Bourne Hill, Salisbury; and County Hall, 

Trowbridge) and in all Wiltshire Council libraries. It will also be available on the 

Council’s web site via this link:  

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshsgsiteallocationsplan  

 

Information about how to comment on the draft Plan will be circulated via the area 

board networks closer to this time. 

 
 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshsgsiteallocationsplan




Summary of proposed allocations in the draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan 
 

East Wiltshire Housing Market Area 
 

Relationship to 

Community 

Area (CA) 

Parish Area 
Allocation 

Reference    
Site Name  

Approximate 

dwellings 
SHLAA reference 

Tidworth  CA Ludgershall H1.1 Empress Way 270[1] 553 

Devizes CA Market Lavington H1.2 Underhill Nursery 50 2055/530 

Devizes CA Market Lavington H1.3 Southcliffe 15 1089 

Devizes CA Market Lavington H1.4 
East of Lavington 

School 
15 3443 

                                                           
[1] This total includes 109 dwellings that already have planning permission 

P
age 3



North and West Wiltshire Housing Market Area 
 

Relationship to 

Community 

Area (CA) 

Parish Area 
Allocation 

Reference 
Site Name 

Approximate 

dwellings 
SHLAA reference 

Trowbridge CA North Bradley / Trowbridge H2.1 Elm Grove Farm 200 613 

Trowbridge CA North Bradley H2.2 

Land off the A363 at 

White Horse Business 

Park 

150 298 

Trowbridge CA Hilperton / Trowbridge H2.3 Elizabeth Way 205 297/263 

Trowbridge CA Trowbridge H2.4 Church Lane 45 1021 

Trowbridge CA Trowbridge H2.5 Upper Studley 20 3260 

Trowbridge CA Southwick H2.6 Southwick Court 180 3565 

Warminster CA Warminster H2.7 East of the Dene 100 603 

Warminster CA Warminster H2.8 Bore Hill Farm 70 302/1032 

Warminster CA Warminster H2.9 Boreham Road 30 304 

Warminster CA Chapmanslade H2.10 
Barters Farm 

Nurseries 
35 316 

Chippenham CA Hullavington H2.11 The Street 50 690 

Chippenham CA Yatton Keynell H2.12 East of Farrells Field 30 482 

Malmesbury CA Crudwell H2.13 Ridgeway Farm 50[2] 3233 

Malmesbury CA Bratton  H2.14 Court Orchard / 40 321 

                                                           
[2] This total includes 10 dwellings that already have planning permission 

P
age 4



Cassways 

             

South Wiltshire Housing Market Area 

Relationship to 

Community 

Area (CA) 

Parish Area 
Allocation 

Reference 
Site Name 

Approximate 

dwellings 
SHLAA reference 

Salisbury / 

Wilton CA 
Netherhampton H3.1 Netherhampton Road 640 S1028 

Salisbury CA Salisbury H3.2 Land at Hilltop Way 10 S61 

Salisbury / 

Wilton CA 
Netherhampton H3.3 

North of 

Netherhampton Road 
100 S1027 

Salisbury CA Salisbury H3.4 Land at Rowbarrow 100 3272 

Amesbury CA Durrington H3.5 Clover Lane 45[3] 3154/S98 

Amesbury CA Durrington H3.6 Land off Larkhill Road 15 3179 

 

 

                                                           
[3] This total includes approximately 15 dwellings that already have planning permission 

P
age 5





Page 1 of 10 
 
 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD 

Place: Tidworth Garrison Theatre, St Andrew's Road, Tidworth, SP9 7EP 

Date:  17 May 2017 

Start Time: 7.00 pm 

Finish Time: 9.00 pm 

 

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:  

Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01249 706612 or (e-mail) 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Papers available on the Council’s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
In Attendance: 
 
Wiltshire Councillors 
Cllr Mark Connolly, Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling and Cllr Christopher Williams 
 
Wiltshire Council Officers 
Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager (CEM) 
Kevin Fielding – Democratic Services Officer 
 
Town and Parish Councillors 
Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council – Phil Gill 
Collingbourne Kingston Parish Council – Nigel Braybrook 
Enford Parish Council – Anthony D’arcy- Irvine 
Everleigh Parish Council – Denis Bottomley 
Ludgershall Town Council – Mike Giles 
Netheravon Parish Council – Trevor Barker 
Tidworth Town Council – Humph Jones, Brian Pratt & Sue Fell 
 
Partners 
Wiltshire Police – PC Lucy Wileman 
Tidworth Garrison – Major Paul Kelly 
Tidworth Community Area Partnership – Reia Jones 
Wellington Heroes – Nicola Ansell & Chris Smith 
Lovell Partnerships – John Leary & Dawn Harrison                                    
 
Total in attendance: 40 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 10 
 
 

 
 

Agenda 
Item No. 

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision 

5   Chairman's Welcome, Announcements and Introductions 

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Tidworth Area Board. 
 
The following Chairman’s Announcement was noted: 
 

 That Cllr Chris Williams had been appointed Chairman and Cllr Mark 
Connolly Vice-chairman of the Tidworth Area Board – 2017/18. 
 

6   Apologies for Absence 

 Apologies for absence were received from: 
 
Tony Pickernell – Tidworth Community Partnership, Laura Kitchener- Pain – 
Tesco, Adam Smith – Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council. 
 

7   Declarations of Interest 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

8   Minutes 

 Decision 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 13 March 2017 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

9   Appointments to Outside Bodies and Working Groups 

 The following appointments to outside bodies and working groups for the 
forthcoming year were made: 
 

 Community Area Transport Group – Cllr Mark Connolly 
 

 Tidworth Community Area Partnership – Cllr Chris Williams 
 

 Tidworth Leisure Centre Executive Committee - Cllr Chris Williams 
 

 Local Youth Network (LYN) - Cllr Chris Williams 
 

Page 8



Page 3 of 10 
 
 

 Wellington Academy Governing Body – Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
 

 TCAP Health & Wellbeing Group - Cllr Chris Williams 
 

10   Community Engagement Manager update 

 Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 The role of the Community Engagement Manager and the Area Board. 
 

 WW1 Commemorative tree planting - A proposal for Wiltshire Council to 
plant 10,000 trees to commemorate the centenary of the end of the First 
World War. It was to be decided whether a large Wiltshire wood, or 
smaller community areas would be planted. 

 

 Big Pledge 2017 – A short film was shown. 
 

 Recycle for Wiltshire – It was agreed that the Area Board would adopt the 
Recycle for Wiltshire Project Plan.  
 

The Chairman thanked Marc Read for his update. 
 

11   Police Update 

 PC Lucy Wileman presented the written update which was noted. 
 

12   Fire Update 

 The written update which was noted. 
 

13   Local Youth Network update including grants 

 Nicola Ansell - Wellington Heroes. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That the Heroes were looking to organise a Youth Mental Health 
Conference – date to be confirmed. 
 

 That the Heroes continued to publicise the work of the LYN. 
 
 
 

Page 9



Page 4 of 10 
 
 

The Area Board was asked to consider one application for youth funding 
following recommendation from the Local Youth Network (LYN) Management 
Group. 
 
Decision 
 

 Tidworth Town U13 youth football team awarded £1,221 for set up 
costs, such as a new kit, goal nets, flag poles, pitch bookings and 
winter training. 

 
The Chairman thanked Nicola Ansell for her update. 
 

14   Active Plus - Veterans Inspiring People 

 Presentation from Anicka Dyer – Active Plus. 

Points made included: 

 That Active Plus was a Community Interest Company established in 
2011.  

 The group used the skills, experience and expertise of injured military 
veterans to deliver unique programmes that build confidence, motivation 
and self-belief, unlocking the potential of participants, all of whom are 
from vulnerable or potentially vulnerable groups. 

 The group delivered courses and activities for people who were 

unemployed, older people who were lonely or isolated, people with health 

conditions, including mental ill-health, and young people at risk of leaving 

school without qualifications or work.  

 The group had grown geographically from it’s base in Cornwall to deliver 

across Devon, Somerset, Dorset and Wiltshire. 

 Funders and investors include the Big Lottery Fund, Department for Work 

and Pensions, European Social Fund, Local Authorities and the NHS. 

 Our military veterans begin their journey with us as volunteers. Some 

have physical injuries, many have PTSD and are themselves vulnerable. 

Some had been unemployed for long periods, others just making the 

transition from forces to civilian life. All were fantastic role models who 

share not only their skills and expertise with course participants, but also 

their own personal journeys. 

Page 10



Page 5 of 10 
 
 

 They empathise, inspire, challenge and gain respect in a way that was a 

powerful force for change – both for participants and for the veterans 

themselves. 

The Chairman thanked Anicka Dyer for her presentation. 
 

15   Lovell - Ludgershall Development 

 Presentation from John Leary – Operations Director, Lovell. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 Autumn 2016 appointed by MOD as Preferred Bidder for the delivery of 
917 homes (SFA) to support Army Basing.  

 

 Three sites at Ludgershall (246), Larkhill (444) and Bulford (227). 
 

 Three and four bedroom properties including six bungalows. 
 

 Construction at Ludgershall and Bulford would start in the Autumn of 
2017 with Larkhill following a little later.  The last property would be 
handed over in December 2019. 
 

 ‘Lovell Legacy’ - following completion of the project, the site office at the 
former Corunna Barracks would be handed over to Ludgershall Town 
Council for use as a Community Centre which Lovell had refurbished and 
adapted for future community use. 

 
The Chairman thanked John Leary for his presentation. 
 

16   Area Board Grant Review 

 Ben Jarvis – Splash Wiltshire gave a presentation highlighting how Area Board 
grant funding had benefitted the work carried out by Splash Wiltshire. 
 
Points made included: 
 
Who are we and what do we do 
 

 That Splash formed part of Youth Action Wiltshire which was the youth 
arm of Community First. 
 

 Provided free, positive activities during school holidays for young people 
aged 9-16 who were facing a challenge. 
 

 Engaged young people to increase their confidence, self-esteem and 

Page 11



Page 6 of 10 
 
 

social skills. To challenge and empower them. 
 

 Provided a positive, safe environment where young people could flourish. 
 
 
Had so far delivered 
 

 Multi-Sports.  
 

 High Ropes. 
 

 Mountain biking. 
 

 Young people had also attended Fun Animation, Winter Survival, 

Eggstreeme, Bushtucker Trial, Fun 1
st

 Aid and Head for Heights. 
 
 
What next 
 

 Rugby in Marlborough in May Half Term. 
 

 Catch it Cook it Eat it, Wet N Wild and Out There in the Summer. 

  

 Mountain biking during October 2017. 
 

 Music and Animation. 
 
The Chairman thanked Ben Jarvis for his presentation. 
 

17   Grant Funding 

 The Area board members considered six applications for grant funding and one 
Councillor Led Initiative: 
 
Community Area Grants 
 
Decision 
Collingbourne Kingston Village Hall awarded £1,908.30 for Collingbourne 
Kingston Village Hall internal improvements. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2017/18 
 
 
Decision 
The Wellington Academy awarded £2,000 for Wellington Outdoor Fitness 
Space. 

Page 12



Page 7 of 10 
 
 

Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2017/18 
 
 
Decision 
Collingbourne Cricket Club awarded £1,000 for Collingbourne Cricket Club 
Sight Screen purchase. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2017/18 
 
 
Decision 
Little Treasure awarded £1,000 for little treasures playgroup equipment. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2017/18 
 
 
Decision 
Tidworth Inline Hockey awarded - £1,370.50 for Tidworth Inline Hockey 
Equipment 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2017/18 
 
 
Decision 
Army Cadet Force awarded £1,000 for Army Cadet Force standard and 
relevant equipment to participate in events such as Remembrance Day 
with our own standard. To purchase required lesson aids to teach classes 
more efficiently. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2017/18 
 
 
 
Cllr Led Initiative – Cllr Chris Williams awarded £5,000 for Ludgershall 
Youth Club. This funding will allow the trustees to install CCTV, and carry 
out repair work on the fabric of the building so that it is ready to be open 
its doors again later this year. 
 

Volunteers from the local community had agreed to carry out the 
redecoration of the building. 

 

18   TCAP Thematic Group Updates 

  
Health & Wellbeing Group – Reia Jones 
 

Page 13



Page 8 of 10 
 
 

Points made included: 
 

 That the group had last met on the 20 April 2017. 
 

 Ongoing issues with Ambulance services in the east of the community 
area re waiting times. 
 

 Ongoing issues with lack of NHS dentist provision. 
 

 Next meeting Thursday 13 July 2017. 
 
 

Health & Wellbeing Grant Funding 
 

 Tai Chi Classes £162.50 awarded. 

 

 Wellington Academy Lunch Club £175.00 awarded. 

 

 Wiltshire CIL – Make Someone Welcome Project £2,000 awarded. 

 
Dementia Action Alliance subgroup update – Brian Pratt 
 

 That group members had taken part in the recent Dementia Awareness 
Week – Spinathon. 

 

 That the group were looking for more sign ups to the Dementia Alliance. 
 
 
Child Poverty subgroup update – Marc Read 
 

 Looking to organise a Tidworth Family Learning Festival during October 
2017. 

 
 
Older Person & Carers Champion update – Tony Pickernell 
 
Points made included: 
 

 More Link Drivers in Ludgershall and Tidworth. We have managed to 
recruit two more this month so progress is being made. 

 Was still visiting Care Homes and individuals. 26 Eng Regt were still 
visiting Bartlett House once a month. 

 Would be starting Dinner Tea Dances in September and hoped to raise 
funding for transport so the outlying areas could also get a chance to 

Page 14



Page 9 of 10 
 
 

attend the first one. 

 Ludgershall Memory Cafe was going well. During April 32 attended.   

Would soon be publishing an events list to the end of the year next week, 
was just waiting to confirm Hairdresser and entertainer. Next month June 
three members of The Tidworth Wives Choir would be attending. 

 That the Youth Club would become Dementia Friendly. 

 That the Men Shed was now up and running. 

The Chairman thanked everybody for their updates. 

 

19   Community Area Transport Group update 

 Cllr Mark Connolly advised that the group had not met since the last Area Board 
meeting. 
 

20   Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Army, NHS, TCAP and other 
Partners 

 Tidworth Garrison 
 

 Major Paul Kelly thanked the Area Board on behalf of Col Steve Lawton 
for his time attending the Area Board. 

 
 
Tidworth Town Council  
 

 That the new War Memorial would be unveiled on Sunday 26 June 2017. 
 

 That a Summer Festival event was planned for Saturday 22 July 2017. 
 

 
Ludgershall Town Council  
 

 That the Annual Fete would be held on Saturday 14 October, with a 
military march through by the 26 Engineer Regiment. 

 
 
Enford Parish Council 
 

 That a production of “Twelfth Night” at Enford Village Hall on Tuesday 13 
June. 

 
 
 

Page 15



Page 10 of 10 
 
 

Collingbourne Kingston Parish Council 
 

 Disco and Hog Roast on Sat 10 June 2017. 
 
The Chairman thanked everybody for their updates. 
 

21   Close 

  

Page 16



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 1 

              
              
     
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. East Community Policing Team 
 

Sector Head:   Inspector Nick Mawson 
 
Sector Deputy:   Sergeant Mark Andrews 
 
Community Coordinator: Pc Lucy Wileman 

 
Pewsey PCSO:   PCSO Maria Downham & PCSO Natalie Cleife 
 

 
Hello and welcome to this Community Policing Team report. 
 
 
Many areas boards are raising the issue that our 101 Call handling for Wiltshire remains below the 
standards we wish to deliver.   
 
To give context to the current position it is important to understand that there has been a 
significant shift in the way we manage our demand within the Police Service.  
 
The Community Policing Model recognises that the Police service is being asked to do ‘more with 
less’ and helps to address this fact by assessing the demand at the first point of contract. The call 
handler will assess the  threat, harm and risk without necessarily tasking an officer to attend in the 
first instance.  The adage they work to in our Communication Centre is to get it right first time.   
 
As a result of this change in handling we have seen an increase in waiting times for calls to be 
answered.   
 
However, since we initiated the CPT Model, calls for immediate help have seen an improvement.   
 
It is also important to note that we have engaged in a significant recruitment phase for many roles 
within the CPT.  Police Officers, PCSO, Local Crime Investigators and Prisoner Transport Team 
members have all been recruited.  Where do we find people with the right skills to do these 
roles?  One area is our Communication Centre.  These are members of Police Staff who have 
been trained in aspects of law and have good communication skills.  It is not surprising that they 
then wish to use their training and continue to develop.  Consequently recruitment and retention of 
staff is a challenge, however to reassure you our Communication Centre Leadership team have a 
well-established rolling recruitment programme in place. 
 
We continue to review and assess where improvements are needed. We are currently exploring 
solutions including on-line reporting of crime, a more informative website and on-line chat and 
hope this different access channels will start to be available late summer 2017.  We will not solve 
this issue overnight and are working hard any problems to deliver the best possible service to 
those who contact us.   

 

Tidworth Area Board 
Police Report 

July 2017 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 2 

 

Thank you for your continued support to Wiltshire Police. 
 
Please follow us on: 
 
Twitter https://twitter.com/wiltshirepolice 
Facebook https://www.facebook.com/wiltshirepolice/ 
 
Or sign up to Community Messaging https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/  Our free Community 
Messaging service will also help keep you updated about policing and crime in your local area. 
 

 
2. CPT - Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities: 

 
Current Priorities Tidworth and surrounding areas.  
 
Theft from Motor  Vehicles 
 
This priority commenced back on 20th January 2017 At this time we are awaiting all of the Area 
Board funds to purchase the signs mentioned previously. Following an investigation into a large 
series of vehicle crimes which was a Community Policing priority, Salisbury CID charged two local 
men with conspiracy to steal from vehicles. Two brothers were arrested and subsequently charged 
with the spate of offences between 1st November 2016 and 31st Janaury 2017. They face charges 
in relation to a total of 104 offences including 71 in Wiltshire and 33 in Dorset.They appeared at 
Salisbury Magistrates Court on 16th June and were remanded in custody. They are next due to 
appear at Salisbury Crown Court on 19th July 2017. 
 
Off Road Motorbikes/Vehicles Salisbury Plain 
 
This priority commenced on 24th March, to date 91 actions/patrols have taken place. Officers 
continue to patrol the area along with members of our Volunteer Scheme. The rural crime team are 
actively involved and have just undertaken a social media drive to publish the rules of the plain. 
Further operations are being planned with the MOD,Special Constabulary and RMP. 
 
Burglaries Ludgershall.- Closed 
 
A target patrol was instigated on 20th April following the recent series of burglaries, 16 patrols were 
actioned. On 6th June the patrol was closed down as there were no reported burglaries for the 
previous 4 weeks. One person currently remains on Police Bail for the offences. 
 
Richmond Crescent – Closed 
 
Following complaints of anti social behaviour and possible drug use in the wooded area behind 
Richmond Crescent a patrol started on 16th May. In total 20 patrols were actioned and the patrol 
closed down on 2nd June. A member of the public also became involved on Social Media, they 
were contacted by parents who apologised for their children’s actions and with this joint effort the 
issue has now stopped. 
 
New Drove - Closed 
 
On 15th June a member of the public notified us that random nails and screws were being placed 
on the drive, causing damage to vehicles. A target patrol was instigated with 14 actions/patrols. 
The reporting person has confirmed that the issue has now stopped following the Police presence 
and thanked us for our actions. Patrol was closed on 21st June. 
 

 

Page 18

https://twitter.com/wiltshirepolice
https://www.facebook.com/wiltshirepolice/
https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/


Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 3 

Ludgershall Castle – Closed 
 
On 16th May patrols commenced at Ludgershall Castle following complaints from English Heritage 
about litter and small fires being started. The complaints have since stopped and officers have 
actioned 34 patrols with no current evidence to support any issues. The patrol was closed down on 
26th June 2017. 
 
Wood Park – Closed 
 
On 31st May complaints were received from residents in Wood Park. Anti Social behaviour surveys 
have been issued to residents. In total 17 actions/patrols have taken place. Some residents of 
Wood Park were spoken to on 26th June 2017, they confirmed that the issues have decreased and 
it appears that the youths may have moved elsewhere. They were happy for the patrols to be 
closed at this time. 
 
Military Sites 
 
On 24th May additional patrols commenced at our local Military sites following recent terrroist 
attacks. In total 69 patrols have been actioned, these patrols will continue 
 
Recreation Ground & Jubilee Gardens Ludgershall – Agreed 27/06/2017 
 
Following the recent spate of criminal damage, evidence of drug and alcohol use, the NTG 
decided to instigate this as a new priority for a period of 3 months. There are issues at both 
locations with anti social behaviour, off road motorbikes being driven across the rec. The caretaker 
is clearing up evidence of drug and alcohol use along with damage being caused the the play 
equipment and surrounding furniture on a regular basis.  
 
Crime Prevention Summer Campaign  Agreed 27/06/2017 
 
Due to the recent mixture of theft from motor vehicles, theft of pushbikes and some dwelling 
burglaries, we all agreed for a summer campaign around Crime Prevention to take place. This 
work will be undertaken by the PCSO’s along with other agencies to get the message out. 
 
Neighbourhood Tasking Meeting 
 
 
This meeting took place on 27th June at Community Centre, Wyle Road. Two new priorities were 
agreed. One covering issues taking place in the Recreation Ground & Jubilee Gardens 
Ludgershall. The other being a Crime Prevention Summer campaign. 
 
 
 
 
Media 
 
Maria has agreed to do a regular slot on Castledown Radio & BFBS with Brian Pratt and Marc 
Read. 
 
Consultations 
 
You PCSO’s are carrying out consultations on their areas. 
 
 
 

Page 19



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 4 

 
Update re Rural Crime Partnership 
 
 
Rural crime operations continue, in our efforts to target what is often cross border organised 
criminal activity. Of one particular individual who has been actively involved in hare coursing and 
trespass on farmland a Community Protection Warning notice has been issued, in addition to 
seeking out prosecution for the offence itself. We are eager to utilise this legislation for persistent 
and impactive rural crime incidents.   
 
 

3. Wiltshire Police Control strategy 
 
Below is our Control Strategy for your reference. This focuses on how we conduct our operational 
policing based on the Police and Crime Plan. We will continue to align our resources with the 
threat/harm/risks presented in line with the control strategy. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Child sexual explotation and abuse 
 
CSEA is high harm but mainly hidden. Children are now more vulnerable to bullying, extortion and 
victimisation - linked to internet facilitated offending. 
 
Organised criminality 
 
OC underpins all areas of crime, particularly those hidden or poorly understood. In Wiltshire OC is 
overrepresented by Foreign National Offenders. 
 

Page 20



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 5 

Cybercrime 
 
Cyber-crime is grossly under-reported and poorly recorded but growing rapidly. There is now a 
cyber-element to almost every area of crime. 
 
County Lines and the Criminality Exploited 
 
Almost all drug networks coming into Wiltshire are associated with Violence and seek to criminally 
exploit the young 
 
Dangerous and Persistant offenders 
 
A small proportion of offenders commit a disproportionate amount of crime. Contributing factors 
are drugs, alcohol and mental health issues. 
 
 
 
Modern Slavery and Human Exploitation 
 
MS is significantly under reported. Key concerns are: Sexual / labour exploitation and foreign 
nationals who are forced to travel to commit crime. 
 
 
Domestic Abuse 
 
A third of DA perpetrators are repeat offenders. A quarter of offenders have also been the victim of 
DA. 
 
 
Nick Mawson 
Sector Inspector,  
Wiltshire East CPT 

Page 21





 

 

Tidworth Area Board Report, Enford Village Hall - 17th July 2017 
 
 
Statement Regarding Fire at Grenfell Tower 
 
Seth Why, the Head of Fire Safety for Dorset & Wiltshire FRS issued the following: 
 
Following the tragic incident at Grenfell Tower in London it was thought appropriate to 
provide clarity on some key areas where questions may be asked from our communities, so 
that we can ensure that we are delivering a consistent message.   
 
Importantly we must also make sure that we do not pre-judge any issues that may arise out 
of the public enquiry. 
 
 
Stay Put Strategy 
 
We continue to work with local authorities, developers, and tenants to help ensure that the 
fire safety arrangements in high rise accommodation is safe and appropriate.   
 
The advice provided is based on effective fire safety arrangements that are required, 
proposed, and then provided in the building – these will include effective compartmentation 
of the building and suitably protected means of escape. 
 
If there is a fire inside a flat or maisonette our advice is to alert all the people in the flat and 
leave, closing all doors on the way out.  If there is lots of smoke within the flat, residents 
should crawl along the floor where the air should be clearer.  The pre-planned escape plan 
should then be followed.  The stairs rather than the lift should always be used and 999 called 
as soon as the individual is in a safe place.   
 
If there is a fire elsewhere in the building then the structure of flats – walls, floors and doors– 
are designed to give appropriate protection. If there is a fire in the another part of the, then it 
is usually safer to stay in the flat unless the heat or smoke from the fire is having an effect.  If 
someone stays put, they should still immediately call 999 for advice and to ensure that FRS 
crews have been notified.  
 
This generic evacuation strategy means that the majority of purpose built blocks of flats will 
not be designed with a common alarm system within the building.  Each flat will have their 
own stand-alone detection and alarm which will not normally be linked to any other area of 
the block.  There are other areas such as undercover car parks which may have a detection 
and alarm system, but again, will not normally be linked to any other part of the block.  Any 
detectors within the common corridors or staircases are likely to be there to activate any 
ventilation system but will not be designed to sound an audible warning. 
 
The advice in this statement is part of a preventative approach to helping tenants develop an 
initial and safe escape plan.  Of course, once a 999 call is made and firefighters arrive at the 
fire, then the advice may be reinforced or changed depending on the nature of the fire and 
the performance of the particular building. 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Response 
 
 
Incidents 
 
May 2017 – June 2017 
 

Category Ludgershall 

False Alarm 1 

Fire 0 

Special Service 1 

Other 1 

Total 3 

 
 
 
Availability of RDS appliance %  
 

May 2017 Appliance 
Day (06:00 - 

18:00) 
Night (18:00 - 

06:00) 
Total 

% Available KT36P1         20.03% 80.31% 50.17% 

 
       

June 2017 Appliance 
Day (06:00 - 

18:00) 
Night (18:00 - 

06:00) 
Total 

% Available KT36P1          5.56% 15.97% 10.76% 

 
 
 
On-Call Recruitment 
 
We are continually trying to improve the availability of our appliances at Ludgershall by 
reviewing hours and contracts and numbers of personnel, and currently have a number of 
individuals who are in the process.  It is hoped that they will be available as part of our crew 
towards the end of the summer period.  Low appliance figures are mainly due to 2 x 
personnel being on modified duties. 
 
 
Community Engagement Work 
 
Karen Pearson is the Safe and Well Advisor that covers the Ludgershall area.  Please 
contact her, karen.pearson@dwfire.org.uk to arrange for her to talk to your group or an 
individual visit. 
 
A Safe and Well visit is available and is FREE and normally last about one hour covering 
topics such as: 

Page 24

mailto:karen.pearson@dwfire.org.uk


 

 

 

 Using electricity safely 

 Cooking safely 

 Making an escape plan 

 What to do if there is a fire 

 Keeping children safe 

 Good practice – night time routine and other points relevant to you 

 Identifying and discussing any further support you may need if necessary 
 

If you own/occupy a thatch property, are living alone, have a young family, are over 65 or a 
smoker please get in contact with us.  We want to help make you safer in your own home.  If 
you or someone you know has mobility or sight and hearing impairments, please suggest a 
Safe and Well visit. 
Visit http://www.dwfire.org.uk/news/new-name-new-contact-details-same-service/ to book 
one. 
 
 
 
Tom Brolan 
District Commander Amesbury, Pewsey & Ludgershall 
Email: tom.brolan@dwfire.org.uk 
Tel: 01722 691245   
Mobile: 07825061071 
 

 
 

Page 25

http://www.dwfire.org.uk/news/new-name-new-contact-details-same-service/
mailto:tom.brolan@dwfire.org.uk




 

Report to Tidworth Area Board 

Date of Meeting 17/07/2017 

Title of Report Community Area Grant funding 

Purpose of the report: 
To consider the applications for funding listed below  

Applicant Amount requested 

Applicant: Ludgershall Titans football team 
Project Title: Ludgershall FC under 18s  
 
View full application 
  

£840.00 

Applicant: Ludgershall Town Council 
Project Title: Ludgershall Defibrillator Installation 
 
View full application 
  

£375.45 

Applicant: Finding the forgotten 
Project Title: World War One - after the war is over 
 
View full application 
  

£5000.00 

Applicant: Royal British Legion Branch Ludgershall 
Project Title: RBL Ludgershall Branch Standard 
 
View full application 
  

£700.00 

Applicant: Strange Old Things - The Mobile Museum 
Project Title: Strange Old Things - The Mobile Museum 
Outreach 
 
View full application 
  

£1000.00 

1. Background 
Area Boards have authority to approve Area Grants under powers delegated to 
them. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must adhere to the Area Board 
Grants Guidance 
 
The funding criteria and application forms are available on the council’s website.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 14

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2392
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2394
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2324
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2414
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2422
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm


2. Main Considerations 
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that funding awarded in the 2015/2016 year 
is made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of it being awarded. 
 
2.2. Councillors must ensure that the distribution of funding is in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Area Boards. 
 
2.3. Councillors will need to be satisfied that the applications meet the Community 
Area Board grants criteria.  

3. Environmental & Community Implications 
Grant Funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, 
social and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the extent of 
which will be dependent upon the individual project.  

4. Financial Implications 
Financial provision had been made to cover this expenditure.  

5. Legal Implications 
There are no specific legal implications related to this report.  

6. Human Resources Implications 
There are no specific human resources implications related to this report.  

7. Equality and Inclusion Implications 
Community Area Boards must fully consider the equality impacts of their decisions in 
order to meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Community Area Grants will give local community and voluntary groups, Town and 
Parish Council’s equal opportunity to receive funding towards community based 
projects and schemes, where they meet the funding criteria.  

8. Safeguarding Implications 
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place 
to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults.  

9. Applications for consideration  

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2392 

Ludgershall Titans 
football team 

Ludgershall FC under 
18s  

£840.00 

Project Description: 
it is widely recognised that keeping people involved in sport beyond the age of 16 
is very difficult especially 16 - 18s. I am setting up an under 18s football team 
based in Ludgershall and need financial help with purchasing football kit training kit 
training and match balls etc.  
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
84% of the community voted ‘Supporting Healthy Lifestyles’ as a priority at the 

Page 28

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2392


‘Our Community Matters’ event, and this project would support this. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2394 

Ludgershall Town 
Council 

Ludgershall Defibrillator 
Installation 

£375.45 

Project Description: 
Installation of Defibrillator and power and light. 
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
Following a Cardiac Arrest the chance of survival decreases by 23% per minute. It 
is therefore very important medical treatment starts as soon as possible. The UK 
Resuscitation Council suggests an AED should be available wherever medical 
treatment is more than 5 minutes away.  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2324 

Finding the 
forgotten 

World War One - after the 
war is over 

£5000.00 

Project Description: 
The project focus is the end of WW1 the stories of post-war commemorations 
community and family within Wiltshire. Oral Histories about memories of this 
period will be collated. A documentary will be created with archive footage actor 
reconstructions artefacts and images and will make comparisons with civilian and 
military integration today. Young people from the military community will also be 
trained to use audio devices and record their stories. The resources created will be 
available on a touch screen and website and supported by a portable exhibition 
which will tour key events venues libraries and museums across the county. 
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
 
74% of the community voted improving ‘Involvement in Community Events’ as a 
priority at the ‘Our Community Matters’ event, and this project would support this. 

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2414 

Royal British Legion 
Branch Ludgershall 

RBL Ludgershall 
Branch Standard 

£700.00 

Project Description: 
The aims of this Branch are a) To promote and support the service veterans in the 
following ways1 By fostering esprit de corps and a spirit of comradeship and 

Page 29

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2394
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2324
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2414


service. 2 By maintaining an awareness of Service traditions. 3 By acting as a link 
between serving and retired members of the services. b. To provide financial and 
other assistance to serving and former members of the services their spouses 
widows, widowers and dependants who are in need through poverty. The 
Standard is strong and readily identifiable inward and outward symbol and a 
physical focal point of the Branch and which every Branch is required to have.  
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
 
71% of the community voted supporting organisations involved with reducing 
‘Deprivation and Poverty’ as a priority at the ‘Our Community Matters’ event, and 
this project would support this.  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2422 

Strange Old Things - 
The Mobile Museum 

Strange Old Things - The 
Mobile Museum Outreach 

£1000.00 

Project Description: 
The Mobile Museum provides access to heritage items and education to those 
who would not otherwise have access to museums. Our collections of British 
history are mobile interactive and are shown at local residential settings clubs 
schools and events alongside talks and demonstrations by our volunteers. We are 
seeking funding to create new collections in areas not currently covered. We are 
offering 20 free sessions for local projects and organisations to ensure the new 
artefacts reach a wide audience. These will be available for a year from 
September 2017. 
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
74% of the community voted improving ‘Involvement in Community Events’ as a 
priority at the ‘Our Community Matters’ event, and this project would support this.  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report 
 
Report Author: 
Marc Read 
Community Engagement Manager 
01722 434557 
marc.read@wiltshire.gov.uk   

Page 30

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2422
mailto:marc.read@wiltshire.gov.uk


 

Grant Applications for Tidworth on 17/07/2017  

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant 
Amount 

Required 

2392 
Community 

Area Grant 
Ludgershall FC under 18s  

Ludgershall Titans 

football team 
£840.00 

2394 
Community 

Area Grant 

Ludgershall Defibrillator 

Installation 

Ludgershall Town 

Council 
£375.45 

2324 
Community 

Area Grant 

World War One - after the 

war is over 
Finding the forgotten £5000.00 

2414 
Community 

Area Grant 

RBL Ludgershall Branch 

Standard 

Royal British Legion 

Branch Ludgershall 
£700.00 

2422 
Community 

Area Grant 

Strange Old Things - The 

Mobile Museum Outreach 

Strange Old Things - The 

Mobile Museum 
£1000.00 

 

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant 
Amount 

Required 

2392 
Community 

Area Grant 
Ludgershall FC under 18s  

Ludgershall Titans 

football team 
£840.00 

Submitted: 20/04/2017 19:30:24 

ID: 2392 

Current Status: Application Received 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£501 - £5000  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

Page 31



5. Project title? 
Ludgershall FC under 18s  

6. Project summary: 
it is widely recognised that keeping people involved in sport beyond the age of 16 is very 

difficult especially 16 - 18s. i am setting up an under 18s football team based in Ludgershall 

and need financial help with purchasing football kit training kit training and match balls etc.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Ludgershall and Perham Down  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
sp11 9ra  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Children & Young People 

Health, lifestyle and wellbeing 

Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

Sport, play and recreation 

 

If Other (please specify) 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 

Total Income: 
£  

Total Expenditure: 
£  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first 

year:   yes 

Page 32



10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £1685.00    

Total required from Area Board £840.00   

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

football kit 500.00 
personal 

investment 
yes  100.00 

training kit 360.00    

training balls 180.00    

match balls 60.00    

training 

equipment 
300.00    

match pitch 

hire - 

wellington 

academy 

285.00    

Total £1685     £100 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within 

this financial year?  
No  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Tidworth 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project 

benefit your local community? 
currently i have a group of 1617 year old boys we train once a week at the moment on a 

Wednesday.i am going to register the team with Wilts FA and the local Testway league with 

a view to entering their under 18s league 201718. these lads come from varying 

backgrounds civilian and military and they are of mixed ethnicity.i feel strongly about 

keeping these guys involved in sport at this key age giving them a focus each week keeping 

them off the streets and the Xbox keeping them fit and healthy it also promotes social 

inclusion and hopefully inspires them to be role models to the younger people in the local 

area.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
i will personally be coaching and managing the side with the help of a parent.we will be 

recognising areas of improvement and setting goals for the guys to reach this could be in 

levels of fitness technical ability or understanding the game.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 

Page 33



we will be doing fundraising in the community we already have arranged to do a penalty 

shoot out stall at the Ludgershall community day later in the yearwe will also be charging 

match fees 3 per person. we will also be looking for local businesses to sponsor the team  

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be 

available to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 

quotes for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure 

section above) 

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health 

& Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 
yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land 

yes I will make available on request the relevant planning permission for the project. 

yes I will make available on request any other form of licence or approval for this project 

has been received prior to submission of this grant application.  

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

2394 
Community 

Area Grant 

Ludgershall Defibrillator 

Installation 

Ludgershall Town 

Council 
£375.45 

Submitted: 21/04/2017 12:37:31 

ID: 2394 

Current Status: Application Received 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

Page 34



1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£0 - £500  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
Yes  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 
The defibrillator was received after our precept budget was completed and therefore we do 

not have available funds.  

5. Project title? 
Ludgershall Defibrillator Installation  

6. Project summary: 
Installation of Defibrillator and power and light.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Ludgershall and Perham Down  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SP11 9LZ  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Health, lifestyle and wellbeing 

Safer communities 

 

If Other (please specify) 

The community as a whole will benefit  

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
03/2016  

Total Income: 
£135410.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£137939.00  

Page 35



Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£-2529.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£57754.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
The general reserve was lower than best practice and LTC are trying to build this back up.  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £375.45    

Total required from Area Board £375.45   

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

installation 

costs 
375.45    

Total £375.45     £0 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within 

this financial year?  
No  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Tidworth 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project 

benefit your local community? 
Installing a defibrillator on the Memorial Hall will benefit all Ludgershall residents and 

visitors. The Memorial Hall is at the centre of the Town so the most central and near to most 

of the Towns activities.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
once a week LTC office will be inspecting the defib and reporting to SW Ambulance once a 

month.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
will precept for the running costs  

Page 36



16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be 

available to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 

quotes for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure 

section above) 

Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health 

& Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

2324 
Community 

Area Grant 

World War One - after the 

war is over 
Finding the forgotten £5000.00 

Submitted: 22/02/2017 09:18:48 

ID: 2324 

Current Status: Application Received 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£501 - £5000  

Page 37



3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

5. Project title? 
World War One - after the war is over  

6. Project summary: 
The project focus is the end of WW1 the stories of post-war commemorations community 

and family within Wiltshire. Oral Histories about memories of this period will be collated. 

A documentary will be created with archive footage actor reconstructions artefacts and 

images and will make comparisons with civilian and military integration today. Young 

people from the military community will also be trained to use audio devices and record 

their stories. The resources created will be available on a touch screen and website and 

supported by a portable exhibition which will tour key events venues libraries and museums 

across the county.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Tidworth  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
ba14 8jn  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Children & Young People 

Heritage, history and architecture 

Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

 

If Other (please specify) 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
03/2017  

Total Income: 
£50.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£0.00  

Page 38



Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£50.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£50.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
Insufficient funds  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £29200.00    

Total required from Area Board £5000.00   

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

script writing 

for 

documentary 

1500.00 HLF  24350.00 

exhibition for 

tour atrium and 

armed forces 

weekend 

3000.00    

creation of 30-

40 minute 

documentary 

17900.00    

loan packs info 

sheets banners 

and advertising 

materials 

600.00    

creation of 

interface for 

touchscreen 

console 

2500.00    

creation of 

website 
1500.00    

volunteer 

training and 

expenses 

200.00    

expenses for 

talks 
400.00    

touchscreen 

console 
1600.00    

audio recorders 150.00    

Page 39



Total £29350     £24350 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within 

this financial year?  
No  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Tidworth 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project 

benefit your local community? 
Our project will involve the community both civilian and military in the process of 

recording family stories of the period at the end of and directly after World War 1 and will 

make comparisons with military and civilian integration today. The aim will be to engage 

people of all ages and will particularly involve people from the Ludgershall and Tidworth 

area in the process of understanding the effects of this post war period on mental health 

community and family and to make modern day comparisons. There will be many 

opportunities for volunteers from both the civilian and military communities to participate 

in a range of cultural activities talks and training events with a chance to learn new skills 

including oral history training. An exhibition and materials created will tour key public 

events including the Armed Forces Weekend and the Atrium County Hall Trowbridge well 

as an ongoing tour at heritage centres Libraries military organisations and key public venues 

across the county. A website will create personal national and international access to the 

project materials. The materials created will include a film which will be a retelling by 

actors of the local stories which have been shared and will make comparisons with today 

using experts from military organisations. This will be supported by an exhibition and 

information packs which will be designed to engage old and young across the county. This 

will ensure that the process of learning about the period is ongoing and far reaching. All 

activities during the project and access to the project materials afterwards will be free of 

charge. The research into mental and emotional health during this period will provide an 

opportunity to learn about the early foundations of psychiatry and mental health treatments 

as well as offering members of the community the chance to talk and share ensuring an 

ongoing commemoration of the sacrifices made by individuals families communities and a 

nation after WW1 and an understanding of how we can relate the past to the present and 

learn from both. The project is being supported by a range of MPs and Councillors 

including Chris Williams and Dr Andrew Murrison.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
Feed back cards and a visitors book will be available for comments at all exhibitions. 

Visitor numbers and volunteer data will be collated and an evaluation report will be 

produced at the end of the project  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
The website will be hosted for five years with the funding to cover this. All equipment and 

materials purchased for the project will be maintained by Finding the Forgotten  

Page 40



16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 
creation of touring exhibition and documentary in multi formats Total project costs 

29350.00  

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be 

available to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 

quotes for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure 

section above) 

Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health 

& Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

2414 
Community 

Area Grant 

RBL Ludgershall Branch 

Standard 

Royal British Legion 

Branch Ludgershall 
£700.00 

Submitted: 06/05/2017 15:12:35 

ID: 2414 

Current Status: Application Received 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

Page 41



2. Amount of funding required?  
£0 - £500  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

5. Project title? 
RBL Ludgershall Branch Standard  

6. Project summary: 
The aims of this Branch are a. To promote and support the service veterans in the following 

ways1 By fostering esprit de corps and a spirit of comradeship and service. 2 By 

maintaining an awareness of Service traditions. 3 By acting as a link between serving and 

retired members of the services. b. To provide financial and other assistance to serving and 

former members of the services their spouses widows widowers and dependants who are in 

need through poverty. The Standard is strong and readily identifiable inward and outward 

symbol and a physical focal point of the Branch and which every Branch is required to 

have.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Ludgershall and Perham Down  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SP11 9TB  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Children & Young People 

Economy, enterprise and jobs 

Festivals, pageants, fetes and fayres 

Health, lifestyle and wellbeing 

Heritage, history and architecture 

Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

Safer communities 

Sport, play and recreation 

Other 

 

If Other (please specify) 

Promotion and support of Service Veterans of all ages  

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Page 42



Your latest accounts: 
04/2017  

Total Income: 
£50.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£0.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£0.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£0.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £994.01    

Total required from Area Board £700.00   

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Standard 512.63 
Member 

Contribution 
yes  200.00 

Cord and 

Tassels 
35.35 

Town Council 

Grant 
 200.00 

Pole 109.79    

Insert for Carry 

Strap 
31.87    

Carry Strap 58.30    

Carry Bag 18.33    

Gauntlets 59.28    

VAT 168.46    

Total £994.01     £400 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within 

this financial year?  
No  

Page 43



 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Tidworth 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project 

benefit your local community? 
Young and oldService Veterans and their extended families will befit By Promoting and 

supporting local service veterans in the following ways1 By fostering esprit de corps and a 

spirit of comradeship and service. - links to Diversity and Social inclusion Social Isolation 

Loneliness2 By maintaining an awareness of Service traditions. Links to Mental Emotional 

health3 By acting as a link between serving and retired members of the services. Social 

Isolation Lonelinessb. To provide financial and other assistance to serving and former 

members of the services their spouses widows widowers and dependants who are in need 

through poverty. Links to Health and Well being Deprivation Poverty.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
By holding monthly Branch Meetings and by engaging with other service agencies and local 

military units.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
By Branch Members Annual Subscriptions  

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be 

available to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 

quotes for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure 

section above) 

Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health 

& Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 

Page 44



And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

2422 
Community 

Area Grant 

Strange Old Things - The 

Mobile Museum Outreach 

Strange Old Things - The 

Mobile Museum 
£1000.00 

Submitted: 09/05/2017 23:20:54 

ID: 2422 

Current Status: Application Received 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£0 - £500  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

5. Project title? 
Strange Old Things - The Mobile Museum Outreach  

6. Project summary: 
The Mobile Museum provides access to heritage items and education to those who would 

not otherwise have access to museums. Our collections of British history are mobile 

interactive and are shown at local residential settings clubs schools and events alongside 

talks and demonstrations by our volunteers. We are seeking funding to create new 

collections in areas not currently covered. We are offering 20 free sessions for local projects 

and organisations to ensure the new artefacts reach a wide audience. These will be available 

for a year from September 2017.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Tidworth  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SP9 7QN  

Page 45



9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Children & Young People 

Arts, crafts and culture 

Countryside, environment and nature 

Festivals, pageants, fetes and fayres 

Heritage, history and architecture 

Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

 

If Other (please specify) 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
03/2017  

Total Income: 
£344.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£1000.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£0.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£48.45  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
Our reserves are too small to cover more than a fraction of the initial cost of the project as 

we constantly re-invest our income to keep the project running.  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £1000.00    

Total required from Area Board £1000.00   

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Heritage 

artefacts 

relating to 

Anglo Saxon 

period 

80.00    

Page 46



Heritage 

artefacts 

relating to 

Second World 

War period 

200.00    

Heritage 

artefacts 

relating to 

Commonwealth 

period 

170.00    

Heritage 

artefacts 

relating to 

History of 

Science 

150.00    

Heritage 

artefacts 

relating to the 

Neolithic 

period 

100.00    

Heritage 

artefacts 

relating to the 

Natural History 

collection 

150.00    

Storage 

furniture for 

new collections 

100.00    

Associated 

printing 

expenses 

10.00    

New display 

boards and 

acryllic signs 

40.00    

Total £1000     £0 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within 

this financial year?  
Yes  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Devizes 

Melksham 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project 

benefit your local community? 

Page 47



The Mobile Museum provides interactive education sessions on a variety of themes from 

history. Its a perfect tool for providing engaging hands-on learning for young people which 

we will conduct through school visits and attendance at local family-orientated events. 

Children engage extremely well with the interactive nature of the artefacts. We hope to 

create collections that appeal to a more diverse audience by including more artefacts 

relating to the role of women young people and migrants in British history. We believe that 

people from all walks of life benefit hugely from a sense of shared national heritage. The 

sessions will be designed around the needs of individual schools ensuring that we mirror the 

topics picked by each school to deliver the syllabus. Our collection is designed to travel to 

those people who would not otherwise have access to museum collections. Previously this 

has included the elderly and mentally infirm adults with mental health difficulties and 

homeless young people. Our work with adults with mental health difficulties has 

contributed to many individual recovery programs and we hope to expand on this program 

in the coming year. Another aspect of our community engagement has been our presence at 

a number of local events. We have a 6m x 3m marquee which we are able to bring to local 

events to house the collection. Our volunteers then provide regular talks and demonstrations 

creating a unique and popular addition for any local event. Again we are able to match the 

themes chosen by organisers. If we are successful in our bid we are planning to expand our 

First World War collection ready for anticipated commemoratory events for 2018s 

centenary. Normally we ask local organisations for donations towards expenses and running 

costs for the services we provide. In addition to the use of the expanded collection we are 

offering 20 free sessions subject to availability for projects organisations and local events to 

make use of the new collections.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
We will provide feedback forms for organisations that use the service and a comments book 

for the public at events. We als use social media including Facebook and Twitter to engage 

with customers and recieve feedback.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
The vast majority of the grant will go towards acquiring heritage artefacts which will 

remain in the museums collection indefinitely. These will be used to provide sessions for 

local organisations around the topics chosen for expansion. The topics can then be covered 

for many years and we will cover conservation costs from other sources of income 

representing great value for money.  

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 
NA  

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be 

available to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 

quotes for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure 

section above) 

Page 48



Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health 

& Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

 

 

Page 49





 

 

 

Health and Wellbeing projects and activities 
FUNDING APPLICATION 

1. Applicant: 

Name Andrew Day 

Organisation Alzheimer’s Society 

Address 29a Brown St Salisbury SP1 2AS 

Phone number 01722 326236 

Email address andrew.day@alzheimers.org.uk 

 

2. Amount of funding required from the Area Board: 

£0 - £1000 x 

£1001 - £5000  

Over £5000 (please note – our grants will not normally exceed £5000)  

 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 

Yes  

No x 

 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept? 

 

 

5. Project title? 

Ludgershall and Tidworth Carer Support Group 

 

6. Project summary: (100 words maximum) 

To establish a monthly support group for the unpaid carers of people living with dementia in the 
community area. (Note: the facilitator’s salary will paid with Alzheimer’s Society voluntary 
income.) 
 

 

 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 

Tidw orth
 

 

8. What is the Post Code of the place where your project is taking place? 

SP11 9QF 
 

 

Page 51



 

 

9. Please tell us which themes best describe your project: 

 

 Intergenerational projects 

Older People Support/Activities 

 Carers Support/Activities 

 Promoting physical and mental wellbeing 

Combating social isolation  

 Promoting cohesive/resilient communities 

 Arts, crafts and culture 

  Safer communities 
 

 

 Heritage, history and architecture 

 Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

 Environment, recycling and green initiatives 

 Sport, play and recreation 

 Transport  

 Technology & Digital literacy 

 Other 

 
If Other (please specify) 

 

10. About your project 
Please tell us about your project (a strong application will address all of the following): 

How does your project support local needs and priorities?  

The carer support group w ill ensure that those families/relatives of people living w ith dementia have the opportu

The request to set up this group came from an initial meeting organised by the Castle Practice in Ludgershall. 

 

How many people do you expect to benefit from your project? 

We hope that 12 carers w ill attend each month. 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 

 

How will you encourage volunteering and community involvement?  

The paid facilitator w ill be supported by volunteers from the local community.

 

How will you ensure your project is accessible to everyone (for example: people living with a 
disability or on low incomes, or vulnerable, or socially isolated etc.)? 

 We w ill promote this through the local surgeries,memory cafes and other community netw orks and organisation

 

How will you work with other community partners?  

We w ill w ork w ith the Health and Well Being Board,Dementia Action Alliance and other partners to ensure the ma

 

11. Safeguarding 
Please tell us about how you will protect and safeguard vulnerable people in your project (You must 
address all of the following):  

 
 Please provide evidence of your commitment to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of 

older/vulnerable people and their carers. 
 How do you make sure staff and volunteers understand their safeguarding responsibilities? 
 Who in your organisation is ultimately responsible for safeguarding? 

Page 53



All staff and volunteers receive safeguarding training w ithin our competencty framew ork and w ork to our policies 

 

 

 

 
12. Monitoring your project. 

How will you know if your project has been successful? *required field 
 

We w ill record attendance figures monthly; conduct an annual evaluation and the facilitator w ill complete a qu

 
 

13. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will you continue to 
fund it? 

 The monitoring and evaluation of the group w ill enable us to present a business case for funding from Alzheimer's So

 

14. If this application forms part of a larger project (eg a community navigation project), please state 
what this project is and approximately how much the overall project will cost 

 

 

15. Finance: 

15a. Your Organisation’s Finance: 

Your latest accounts: 

Month    Year   

Total Income: 

£   

Page 54



Total Expenditure: 

£   
Surplus/Deficit for the year: 

£   
Free reserves currently held: 
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 

£   

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 

 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

15b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £
300

    

Total required from Area Board £
300

   
Expenditure £ Income £ Tick if income confirmed 

NB. If your organisation 
reclaims VAT you should 
exclude VAT from the 
expenditure 
(Planned project costs help) 

(Planned Income help)   

Venue Hire
 

270
    

Refreshments
 

30
    

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

Total 300
 Total    

16. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant for this project from another area board within this 
financial year? *required field  

Page 55

http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/areaboard_grants/grant_help.php?help_q=aexpenditure
http://thematrix.wiltshire.council/areaboard_grants/grant_help.php?help_q=aincome_sofar


 Yes 

 No 

 
 

17. Please list which area boards you are intending to apply, including this one (You can apply to a 
maximum of 3 Area Boards for the same project in a financial year) *required field, if Yes to Q11. 
 

 

 
 

 

18. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available to inspect 
upon request (You DO NOT need to send these documents to us): 

Quotes: 

 I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes for 
project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section above) 

Project/Business Plan: 

 For projects over £50,000: I will make available on request a project or business plan (including 
estimates) for projects where the total project cost (as declared in the financial section above) 
exceeds £50,000 (tick only when total project cost exceeds £50,000). 

Accounts: 

 I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 

 I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 

 I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such as Child 
Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & Safety and 
Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not be 
applicable): 

 I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land 

 I will make available on request the relevant planning permission for the project. 

 I will make available on request any other form of licence or approval for this project has been 
received prior to submission of this grant application.  

And finally... 

 I confirm that the information on this form is correct, any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified.  

Page 56



 
 

Page 57





The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

 

 

July 2017 

Overview 

NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is responsible for commissioning a broad range of 
healthcare for the population of Wiltshire.  We are led by experience local GPs drawn from across the 
county, who provide clear clinical leadership to the big decisions affecting the future of healthcare 
provision in Wiltshire, carefully tailored to meet the differing needs of people locally. 

Our vision is to ensure the provision of a health service which is high quality, effective, clinically-led 
and local.  We are committed to delivering healthcare that meets the needs of Wiltshire people, to 
consult and engage with our population to enable them to be involved in decisions made about health 
services and to deliver those services to people in their own homes or as close to home as possible. 

The right healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

New Interim Chief Officer joins Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group  

Linda Prosser has joined Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) as Interim Chief Officer. 

Chair of Wiltshire CCG, Dr Peter Jenkins said: “We look forward to working with Linda and are 

confident she is well-placed to lead us through the challenges we know are ahead of us”. 

 

 

Ms Prosser, who joins the CCG from NHS England South 

West where she was Director of Assurance and Delivery, 

said: 

 

 

 

“I’m delighted to join Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group. This is a very strong CCG with a good 

track record that is well placed to rise to the challenges facing the health and care system in the next 

few years. I am very pleased to be a part of that. We will be working very closely with our colleagues in 

Wiltshire Council to this end, including the appointment of a shared leadership role across the CCG 

and Adult Social care. I intend to provide the leadership and support to the CCG during this period up 

until this new post is taken up. Meanwhile we will continue to put local people at the heart of what we 

do to commission healthcare services that get the best possible outcomes for them.” 

Ms Prosser replaces Tracey Cox, who took on the interim role in October 2016 alongside her 

Accountable Officer duties for Bath and North East Somerset CCG, and has now returned to that role. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 15



The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

 

Page 60



A young carer from Trowbridge, who has carried out more than 

200 hours of volunteering, is urging his peers to get involved in a 

new scheme.  19-year-old Scott Kane, from Hilperton, has helped 

to look after him mum, who has cerebral palsy, since the age of 

three and has found volunteering has boosted his confidence. 

Scott is now helping to promote YouthWatch – a new scheme 

launched by Healthwatch Wiltshire, which aims to help young 

people have a voice on the way health and care services are run in the county. 

The Lackham College student was part of a group of ten ‘Young Listeners’ from Healthwatch 

Wiltshire and Community First who spoke to hundreds of their peers about their views and 

experiences with health and social care over the last year.  Their findings went into a report 

which was shared with health officials who are making changes to the way services are run. 

Scott said: “As young people we often feel that we 

don’t have any authority when talking to a doctor, 

but through YouthWatch we can help give other 

children and young people that power.” 

YouthWatch will train young volunteers (aged from 

14-25) to listen to the views of children and young 

people in the county to find out what they think 

about health and care services.  They will then feed 

this information back to decision-making boards to shape health services in Wiltshire. 

Volunteering has helped Scott develop new skills and boosted his confidence.  He explained: 

“When I got to my teenage years I decided to get involved in volunteering to meet new people 

and help others.  Due to looking after my mum from a young age it has made me more caring, 

more understanding and I’m able to value life for what it is.  I’ve done over 200 hours of 

volunteering now and this makes me happy. 

“I thrive on helping others and volunteering has helped to give not only me a voice but others 

too.  Young people often don’t get heard because of their age but through YouthWatch we can 

make a real impact on the way services are run locally.  I would highly recommend others get 

involved and join YouthWatch, not only for their own benefit but to give something back to 

the wider community and have a real impact on the way 

services are run.” 

If you, your child, or someone you support or look after 

would be interested in joining the YouthWatch scheme, 

get in touch or visit healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/

youthwatch for more details. 

Contact us: 

Tel 01225 434218 

info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

Area Board Update 

July 2017 

Healthwatch Wiltshire is a local independent organisation which exists to speak up for people on health 

and care.  If you have used a service recently then we would like to hear from you. We use what people 

tell us when we meet with the commissioners and providers of services to make sure that they take 

account of your views and experiences. 

Young people urged to speak out about health and care in Wiltshire 

Page 61

http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/youthwatch
http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/youthwatch
mailto:info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk
http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk




 
 
 
 

 
 

          

  Welcome   

Welcome to this the third edition of Plain Speaking.   

Assisted by a relatively dry Spring, we are making good progress 

through the enabling phase of the contract in preparation for the 

construction start later in the Autumn. 

Our colleagues in DIO continue their work to sanitise the three 

sites at Bulford, Larkhill and Ludgershall.  Formal handover of 

each site is expected around August.  

We have had a healthy response generally to the Invitations to 

Tender that have been sent out for a number of packages within 

the contract.  Engaging a robust Supply Chain is key to providing a 

quality product that will be delivered on time and provide value 

for money.  We are content, from the submissions we have 

received thus far, that we will find contractors who share our 

vision to 

provide an 

excellent 

product. 

We continue 

to attend 

local Parish 

and Town 

Council 

meetings to 

provide 

updates and 

answer the 

public’s 

questions.  Together with our colleagues in the Army Basing 

Programme (ABP) and Wiltshire Council (WC) we are also 

continuing to contribute to regular travel bulletins and information 

for local communities.  

As we move towards the construction phase, all of the preparatory 

works are progressing as per our programme and we fully expect 

to meet our client’s expectation that all properties will be handed 

over in accordance with the agreed programme. 

Best wishes. 

 

     
 

 
Dawn Harrison 
Community Relations Manager 

Plain Speaking  Issue 3 – Summer 2017 

Welcome 

 

Progress 

 Bulford 

 Larkhill 

 Ludgershall 

 

Meet some of the 

Team 

 Mike Crosbie 

 Rob Evans 

 

Project Team 

Organisation Chart 

 

Property Designs 

 

Useful Links 

In this Edition 

 

New Public Rights of Way Diversion at the Packway, Larkhill 

Page 63



 
 
 
 

  

PLAIN SPEAKING 

Progress 
 

Bulford 

 
Site clearance works and 
archaeological investigations 
continue at Bulford with an 
expected ‘clear site’ date of 
the end of July.  Construction 
in earnest is anticipated to 
start around September as per 
our client’s programme. 
 
Towards the end of August we 
anticipate that gas diversion 
works will take place at the 
main site entrance opposite 
the Canadian Estate and at the 
secondary entrance at Double 
Hedges.  Work is expected to 
last approximately three 
weeks for both locations.  It is 
likely that there will be 
temporary traffic lights at 
Double Hedges but not 
necessarily at the Canadian 
Estate, as works are likely to 
take place mainly on the verge 
and may not affect the 
highway. 
 
With regard to the number of 
homes planned at Bulford, the 
introduction of bungalows into 
the scheme has meant a slight 
adjustment to the numbers 
due to the larger footprint 
occupied by these properties.  
The original Planning consent 
allowed for 227 homes.  It is 
now expected that there will 
be 225 dwellings in this 
location to include three 
bungalows that will be 
designed for families with 
specific needs along with 
other adapted dwellings.   
 
 

Larkhill 

 
Preparatory work continues with 
the new Rights of Way diversion 
having been opened on 2nd June 
to make way for construction 
works associated with the new 
roundabout along The Packway. 
 

Site sanitisation is nearly 
complete though archaeological 
work continues on the Eastern 
facet and the former Byway 31. 
 
The school site has now been 
handed over to our sister 
Company, Morgan-Sindall, who 
will be constructing the new St 
Michael’s school.  As part of the 
Planning consent for the 
scheme, it is incumbent upon 
Lovell to provide a fully serviced 
access road to the site.  This will 
be one of our first tasks once 
works proper commence on site.  
 
Local communities will be aware 
of the forthcoming periods of 
temporary traffic lights and 
diversions which have been 
widely publicised in liaison with 
our colleagues in the Army 
Basing Programme, Wiltshire 
Council and via the public 
displays in the various locations 
on Salisbury Plain during the 
month of June.   
 
 

Ludgershall 

 
Clearance of the site remains 
ongoing with the planned 
handover to Lovell on course to 
facilitate construction start 
around September. 
 
As with Bulford, the 
introduction of bungalows has 
meant a slight amendment to 
the number of properties 
previously advised.  Again, this 
is due to each bungalow 
occupying a larger footprint.  A 
revised Planning Application 
has therefore been submitted 
for 242 dwellings as opposed to 
the 246 in the original scheme.  
 
At the end of June/beginning of 
July BT Openreach will be 
undertaking telecom diversions 
in the vicinity of the cross-roads 
by the entrance to the Lovell 
site.  Temporary traffic lights 
are likely in this area with work 
likely to last approximately one 
week.   
 
Later in August we anticipate 
that we will be carrying out 
utilities diversions at the 
secondary entrance to the site, 
towards Wellington Academy.  
Temporary traffic lights are 
likely in this area during this 
time with work expected to last 
approximately three weeks.     
 
We apologise in advance for any 
inconvenience during this 
period of initial enabling works.    
 

 

   

 

New Public Rights of Way Diversion 
around the Golf Centre at Larkhill 

Page 64



 
 
 
 

  

PLAIN SPEAKING 

Meet the Team 

  Mike Crosbie 

Mike joined us in January 2017 and is the Technical Manager for the project.  

He came to us from Arborfield Garrison where he supported the project that 

transformed the Garrison into a major housing development.  Mike has 

worked in the construction industry for many years supporting both public 

and private sector clients with housing and commercial developments and 

has previous experience of working with MOD clients.   

In his spare time Mike enjoys sailing and ballroom dancing. 

 

     Rob Evans 

Rob is our Office Manager and Human Resources Advisor and recently 

joined the Project Team on a full-time basis, having principally worked at 

our office in Leeds.  He joined Lovell in 2002 as a Commercial 

Administrator.  Rob has the responsibility for HR matters as well as 

ensuring that the Project Team is supported by a fully serviced office. 

In his spare time Rob is a keen Wolves supporter and plays golf whenever 

he gets the opportunity. 

 

Project Team Organisation Chart 

Since the first edition of Plain Speaking back in February, our core team has grown commensurate 

with progression towards the construction stage which will begin later this year.  The Organogram 

below shows the team as at the end of June.  

Page 65



 
 
 
 

  

PLAIN SPEAKING 

 

Property Designs  

Each property will be built according to MOD scales for Officers’ and Soldiers’ 

accommodation.  The scales are the general standards set by the MOD and agreed by HM 

Treasury for the provision of accommodation for the Regular British Armed Forces. 

The designs include bungalows and a proportion of adapted properties for families with 

specific needs.  These properties will be accessible to wheelchair users.  Each property 

will have its own allocated garage either within the curtilage of the property or within a 

block. 

There are three external finishes proposed within the scheme: 

 Brick 

 Brick and flint 

 Render 

The plans below show the proposed layout for the Type C (Soldiers’ accommodation).  

These properties have three bedrooms.  (Type B, two bedroom accommodation is not 

being constructed as part of this project).  Subsequent editions of Plain Speaking will 

include the remaining designs covering the four bedroom Soldiers’ accommodation, three 

and four bedroom Officers’ accommodation and four bedroom bungalows. 

The gross areas of the Type C properties (including storage) are: 

  Detached – 97m2 

  Semi-detached – 96.6m2 

  Terraced – 96.34 m2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Useful Links 

 Lovell:  http://www.lovell.co.uk/ 

 Morgan Sindall:  https://www.morgansindall.com/ 

 Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO):  

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/defence-infrastructure-organisation 

Page 66

http://www.lovell.co.uk/
https://www.morgansindall.com/
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/defence-infrastructure-organisation

	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements
	Housing Site Allocations Announcement - appendix

	4 Minutes
	5 Police Update
	6 Fire & Rescue Update
	14 Grant Funding
	areaboard_grant_papers_report 17.07.2017
	HWB groups application form Ludgershall CSG

	15 Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Army, NHS, TCAP, Lovell and other Partners
	July HealthWatch
	Lovell Newsletter June 2017 Issue 3


